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Local Workforce Development Area Designation Application 

I. Point of Contact

Fill in the information below regarding the individual who is completing this application on

behalf of the chief local elected official who will serve as the point of contact for future

correspondence.

Chief local 

elected official 

Nick Picerno, Chairman of Moore County Board of 

Commissioners 

Contact Name J. Wayne Vest

Title Moore County Manager 

Address PO Box 905, Carthage, NC 28327 

Email Address wvest@moorecountync.gov 

Date of 

Application 

September 20, 2022 

II. Additional Information Regarding Designation/Transfer Request

Is the request for a new Local Area? ☐ Yes ☐ No

Is the request regarding  the transfer of county(ies)  of an existing 

Local Area by a unit (or group of units) of local government? 

☒ Yes ☐ No

III. Participating Counties

List all counties that will form the reorganized Local Area. 
Cumberland

Harnett

Sampson

Moore (to be added if approved)

Montgomery (to be added if approved)

IV. Adding or Removing a County(ies)
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Indicate the names of each county requesting removal from their currently designated 

Local Area and addition to a reorganized Local Area. Please indicate which Local Area 

the county is being removed from. 

Moore County is requesting to be removed from Regional Partnership Local 

Workforce Development Area (RPLWDA) 

V. Circumstances for the Request

Attach a summary which clearly states the circumstances for the request of transfer of

county(ies)/reorganization

This request is made in accordance with the goals of the Statewide Workforce Board

Realignment. See attached Letter of Intent.

VI. Impact of the Withdrawal County(ies) to the Withdrawing Area

Attach a summary that clearly states how the proposed transfer of county(ies) will impact

those Local Areas from which it is withdrawing, such as impact on service delivery,

economic development regions, commuting patterns, availability of educational and

training providers, needs and services related to the business and employer community,

and other community-based needs.

The proposed transfer will not negatively impact the Local Area from which Moore

County is moving.  Moore County has been advised that the existing Career Center will

remain, and the current Local Area Partnership non-profit will remain and continue to

provide other services.

If all proposed applications are to Mid Carolina, the Regional Partnership Workforce

Development Board will be dissolved.

Additionally, please indicate the impact of the move to the restructured Local Area the

county wishes to be included in, if applicable.

VII. Local Area Designation Criteria

Attach a summary to address each of the specific considerations that follow, as well as

any additional information or evidence to support the claims.

See attached July 19, 2022 Moore County’s Letter of Intention to transition from the

County’s current Local Area.  Additionally, More County officials have and will continue

to communicate with Local Area and Commission officials through and beyond the

transition.

1. Impact on service delivery in the proposed reorganized Local Area;
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Joining Mid Carolina would expand Mid Carolina’s service delivery area allowing 

for greater economies of scale, and allow for more funding for workforce services, 

such as training. Mid-Carolina will continue to oprovide area citizens with direct 

access to programs and services through certified NCWork Centers, satellite sites, 

mobile programs, and special events to make sure individuals are assisted to achieve 

positive outcomes.   

2. Costs and benefits of a potential reorganization including, availability of educational

and training providers (such as institutions of higher education and career and technical

education schools in the area), needs and services related to the business and employer

community and other community-based needs;

Moore County would bring to Mid Carolina the benefits of many educational 

programs, continuing education offerings, trade-skills education and training 

offerings through Sandhills Community College.  The area will have a unified ITA 

policy, providing a level of consistency for the area that doesn’t currently exist. 

Moore County employers currently benefit from these offerings in being able to tap 

into a steady flow of work-prepared workforce talent. Moore County would look to 

capitalize on educational and training offerings from the other Mid Carolina counties 

to the benefit of Moore County employers. Additionally, with more team members 

ready to respond to businesses’ needs, services may be delivered in a more timely and 

comprehensive fashion.  A regional team can deliver a consistent level of services to 

business that may not be occurring in the current “siloed” arrangement.   

3. Consistency with natural labor market areas and commuting patterns;

See the attached report, “Assessing WDB Realignment”. Health Care, Military 

Service, Office Professional, Resort, and Retail are primary drivers of Moore County’s 

labor market.  Although the LMI report suggest there are two counties, Hoke and Lee, 

that experience a higher number of Moore County workers commuting-in, 

should Richmond also join Mid Carolina in the future, that would provide for 3 of 

the 5 Mid Carolina counties that experience over 1,000 Moore County 

workers commuting-in.  Additionally, should the proposed counties ultimately join 

Mid Carolina, the make-up would closely match the South Central Regional 

Prosperity Zone; with only Harnett being part of a different Prosperity Zone 

(North Central Region). Aligning with the economic development structure makes 

sense for Moore County.   

4. Consistency with regional economic development areas;
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As stated above, the make up of Mid Carolina should the proposed counties join will 

closely align with North Carolina Prosperity Zones, specifically the South Central 

Region Prosperity Zone.  Only Harnett is in a different Prosperity Zone.  It should be 

noted that there are other counties in the South Central Region Prosperity Zone that 

are not currently nor proposed (to my understanding) to join Mid Carolina. 

 

5. Local backing by county commissioners, municipal elected officials – including 

mayors and/or city council members, where appropriate – and business or community 

leaders within the area of the implementation strategies to provide quality services to 

employers and individuals; backing may be demonstrated by meeting minutes, letters 

of support, resolutions or a vote of support by a commission, council, or other 

applicable board; and 

 

Prior to Moore County providing the Letter of Intent to join Mid Carolina, there were 

a number of discussions that included members of the Moore County Board of 

Commissioners, Moore County’s Economic Development agency Partners in 

Progress, and Mid Carolina Council of Government Executive Director Justin 

Hembree.  Subsequent to those conversations, the Moore County Board of 

Commissioners approved the Letter of Intent and adopted a supporting resolution.  

Executive Director Hembree has continued to keep Moore County informed as to the 

transfer process moving forward. 

  

6. Local capacity to manage funds, provide oversight of programs, and provide for the 

proper stewardship of public funds. 

 

Mid Carolina is an Existing Council of Governments (COG) and an existing 

Workforce Development Area which has been administering WIOA and is a 

longstanding public agency with understanding of the proper stewardship of funds and 

oversight.  Moore County does not expect there to be issues with Mid Carolina 

managing an expanded Local Area. 

 

 

VIII. Signatures of Representatives from each County in the Proposed Reorganized Local 

Area 

The chief local elected official from each county to be named on the Local Area’s 

Consortium Agreement in the proposed Local Area must sign the attached signature sheet 

to show their approval. If necessary, a separate signature page from each representative 

may be attached. Additional signature lines may be added as needed. 
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Mid Carolina Regional Council Director, Justin Hembree is assisting with getting 

signatures of the Chief Elected Officials of Cumberland, Harnett, and Sampson counties.  

The signatures will be forthcoming along with any additional information indicating 

support for expanding the Local Area to include Moore County. 

 

IX. Approvals on Proposed Reorganization of WDB(s) (Optional)  

Have the WDB(s) impacted by the transfer of county(ies)/reorganization approved? 

☐  Yes   ☒ No 

 

If yes, attach Board resolution(s), meeting minutes, or letter of support. 

If no, explain why not. 

 

The current Local Area has been notified of Moore County’s intentions to transfer to Mid-

Carolina, no formal approval was requested; and Mid-Carolina is aware of and to-date 

agreeable to Moore County joining. 

 

X. Email the Application  

Send the completed application with the attachments to: 

AssistantSecretary@ncworks.gov. The subject line of the email should contain “Local 

Area Designation.”   



Signatures of Representatives from each County in the Proposed 

Reorganized Local Area 

Moore County: Date 

Nick Picerno, Board of 1/24/2023

Commissioners 

Nick Picerno 

Montgomery County: 1/19/2023

Dana Dawson, Board of 

�� Commissioners 

Dana Dawson 

Cumberland County: Glenn 

� 

Date 

Adams, Board of Commissioners 1/18/2023

Glenn Adams 

Harnett County: Date 

Lewis Weatherspoon, Board of 

a� 
1/18/2023

Commissioners m • , ·1� 

Lewis Weatherspoon 

Sampson County: Sue Lee, Board 

�cxi!J 
Date 

of Commissioners 1/18/2023

Sue Lee 

Additional Supporting Approvals on Proposed Reorganization of Existing Local 

Area and/or WDBs (OPTIONAL) 

County/Municipality 

Name or Board 

Name, Title 

County/Municipality 

Name or Board 

Name, Title 

Date 

Sign Above 

Insert Name 

Date 

Sign Above 

Insert Name 
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6205 Raeford Road 
Fayetteville, North Carolina 28304 

910-323-4191 
 

December 23, 2022 
 
Chet Mottershead, Assistant Secretary 
Division of Workforce Solutions 
NC Department of Commerce 
4551 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC 27699-4351 
 
Dear Mr. Mottershead: 
 
On behalf of Cumberland County, Harnett County, Sampson County, and Mid-Carolina Regional Council, 
this letter serves to recognize that all noted parties support the realignment of Mid-Carolina Workforce 
Development Board Local Area to include Montgomery County and Moore County. 
 
Conversations concerning this topic have been ongoing for some time and all relevant Chief Local Elected 
Officials agree that this realignment should and will move forward.  All respective Board of County 
Commissioners will begin the process of adopting a new Workforce Consortium Agreement in the Winter 
of 2023. 
 
We respectfully request that this letter be accepted in lieu of signatures requested on the realignment 
applications from Montgomery and Moore Counties.  It is anticipated that signatures will be available on 
January 10, 2023. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Justin B. Hembree 
Executive Director 




